Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where
individuals, communities and businesses flourish
Health and Wellbeing Board
The meeting will be held at 11:00am – 1.00pm on Thursday 28 January 2021
Virtual Meeting – Microsoft Teams
Membership:
Councillor Halden (Chair), Councillor Mayes, Councillor Gledhill and Councillor Fish
Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and Health * (Roger Harris)
Corporate Director of Children’s Services * (Sheila Murphy – Corporate Director for
Children’s Services)
Director of Public Health* (Ian Wake)
Thurrock Alliance Director: Thurrock NHS Clinical Commissioning Group* (Mark Tebbs)
Chief Operating Officer HealthWatch Thurrock * (Kim James)
Chair: Thurrock NHS Clinical Commissioning Group or a clinical representative from the
Board (Dr Kallil)
Executive Nurse or equivalent: Thurrock NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (Stephen
Mayo)
Corporate Director – Place (Andy Millard, Interim Director for Place)
Director level Executive, NHS England Midlands and East of England Region (Ann
Radmore)
Chair Thurrock Community Safety Partnership Board / Director – Environment and Highways
(Julie Rogers)
Adult Safeguarding Partnership senior representative (Stephen Mayo, Thurrock CCG)
Chair Thurrock Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership or their senior representative
(Revolving Chair – Stephen Mayo)
Integrated Care Director Thurrock, North East London Foundation Trust (NELFT) (Tania
Sitch)
Executive member, Basildon and Thurrock Hospitals University Foundation Trust (Andrew
Pike / Preeti Sud)
Executive Director of Community Services and Partnerships, Essex Partnership University
Trust (EPUT) (Nigel Leonard/Paul Scott)
Chief Executive Thurrock CVS (Kristina Jackson)
HM Prison and Probation Service (Karen Grinney)
Interim Joint AO for Mid and South Essex CCGs (Anthony Mckeever)

Agenda
Open to Public and Press
Page

1

Apologies for Absence

2

Minutes
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Health and
Wellbeing Board meeting held on 26 November 2020.

3

Urgent Items
To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4

Declaration of Interests

5

Update on ICS Application
This is a verbal item. Jo Cripps, Mid and South Essex Health and
Care Partnership will update the Board

6

BTUH Maternity CQC Assessment Outcome
This is a verbal item. Diane Sarker (BTUH), will be updating the
Board

7

Update on health and care Winter / COVID pressures
This is a verbal item. Roger Harris, Ian Wake (Thurrock Council)
and Mark Tebbs, (Thurrock CCG) will be updating the Board

8

Mid and South Essex Primary Care Strategy
A report has not been provided to Board in advance of the meeting.
Brian Balmer / Ashley King Mid and South Essex HCP will be
presenting this item to members

5 - 12

9

Initial Health Assessments of Looked After Children

13 - 20

A report has been provided to members in advance of the meeting.
Stephen Mayo / Michael Addo-Boatang (Thurrock CCG) will present
to Board
10

Children and young people's emotional wellbeing and mental
health services in Thurrock

21 - 32

A report has been provided to members in advance of the meeting.
Helen Farmer (Thurrock CCG), Gill Burns (NELFT), Catherine
Wilson and Maria Payne (Thurrock Council) will be presenting to
Board
11

Southend, Essex and Thurrock Dementia Strategy Re-fresh

33 - 38

A report has been provided to members in advance of the meeting.
Catherine Wilson, Thurrock Council will be presenting to Board
12

Essex Sexual Abuse Strategy
A report and accompanying documentation has been provided to
members in advance of the meeting.
Priscilla Tsang (Thurrock Council) and Greg Middleton (Essex
Police) will be presenting to Board

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:
Please contact Darren Kristiansen, Business Manager by sending an email to
DKristiansen@thurrock.gov.uk
Agenda published on: 20 January 2021

39 - 62

This page is intentionally left blank

Information for members of the public and councillors
Access to Information and Meetings
Due to current government guidance on social-distancing and the COVID-19 virus,
council meetings will not be open for members of the public to physically attend.
Arrangements have been made for the press and public to watch council meetings
live via the Council’s online webcast channel: www.youtube.com/user/thurrockcouncil
Members of the public have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no
later than 5 working days before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.
Recording of meetings
This meeting will be live streamed and recorded with the video recording being
published via the Council’s online webcast channel:
www.youtube.com/user/thurrockcouncil.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings
The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local
communities.
Thurrock Council Wi-Fi
Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.


You should connect to TBC-CIVIC



Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.



A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Page 1

Evacuation Procedures
In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.
How to view this agenda on a tablet device

You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry
Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged,
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.
To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this
meeting, Councillors should:



Access the modern.gov app
Enter your username and password

Page 2

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF
Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence
Helpful Reminders for Members




Is your register of interests up to date?
In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?
Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly?

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?



What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet,
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or
If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is
before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting

relate to; or

likely to affect
any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:




your spouse or civil partner’s
a person you are living with as husband/ wife
a person you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.
A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of the
Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.
What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so
significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest.

Non- pecuniary

Pecuniary
If the interest is not already in the register you must
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring
Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature
of the interest to the meeting

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a pending
notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer of the
interest for inclusion in the register

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:
-

Not participate or participate further in any discussion of
the matter at a meeting;

-

Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the
meeting; and

-

leave the room while the item is being considered/voted
upon

If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further
steps

Page 3

You may participate and vote in the usual
way but you should seek advice on
Predetermination and Bias from the
Monitoring Officer.

Our Vision and Priorities for Thurrock
An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by
its diverse opportunities and future.

1.

2.

3.

People – a borough where people of all ages are proud to work and play, live and
stay


High quality, consistent and accessible public services which are right first time



Build on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary and faith groups
to work together to improve health and wellbeing



Communities are empowered to make choices and be safer and stronger
together

Place – a heritage-rich borough which is ambitious for its future


Roads, houses and public spaces that connect people and places



Clean environments that everyone has reason to take pride in



Fewer public buildings with better services

Prosperity – a borough which enables everyone to achieve their aspirations


Attractive opportunities for businesses and investors to enhance the local
economy



Vocational and academic education, skills and job opportunities for all



Commercial, entrepreneurial and connected public services

Page 4

Agenda Item 2
PUBLIC Minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 26
November 2020 2.00pm-4.00pm
Present:

Councillor James Halden (Chair)
Councillor Tony Fish
Roger Harris, Corporate Director for Adults, Housing and
Health
Ian Wake, Director of Public Health
Mark Tebbs, NHS Thurrock Alliance Director
Sheila Murphy, Corporate Director for Children’s Services
Kristina Jackson, Chief Executive, Thurrock CVS
Jane Foster-Taylor, Executive Nurse, Thurrock NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group
Tania Sitch, Integrated Care Director Thurrock, North East
London Foundation Trust (NELFT)
Dr Anil Kallil, Chair of Thurrock CCG
Nigel Leonard, Executive Director of Community Services and
Partnerships, Essex Partnership University Trust (EPUT)
Rahul Chaudhari, Director of Primary Care, Thurrock CCG
Preeti Sud, Executive Member of Basildon and Thurrock
Hospitals University Foundation Trust

Apologies:

Councillor Robert Gledhill
Councillor Allen Mayes
Julie Rogers, Chair Thurrock Community Safety Partnership
Board/Director of Environment and Highways
Andy Millard, Director for Place
Karen Grinney, HM Prison and Probation Service
Michelle Stapleton, Interim Director of Operations, Basildon
and Thurrock University Hospitals Foundation Trust
Tom Abell, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Transformation
Officer, Basildon and Thurrock University Hospitals Foundation
Trust
Andrew Pike, Executive Member, Basildon and Thurrock
Hospitals University Trust
Kim James, Chief Operating Officer, Healthwatch Thurrock
Anthony McKeever, Interim Joint Accountable Officer for Mid
and South Essex CCGs

Guests:

Grant Greatrex, Sports and Leisure Policy and Development
Manager, Thurrock Council
Naintara Khosla, Strategic Lead, CLA, Thurrock Council
Andrea Clement, Assistant Director and Consultant in Public
Health, Thurrock Council
Ceri Armstrong, Senior Health and Social Care Development
Manager, Thurrock Council
Nicola Adams, Thurrock CCG

1.

Welcome, Introduction and Apologies
Colleagues were welcomed and apologies were noted.

Page 5

2.

Minutes
The minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 8 October
2020 were approved as a correct record.

3.

Urgent Items
There were no urgent items raised in advance of the meeting.

4.

Declaration of Interests
There were no declarations of interest.

5.

Active Places Strategy
This item was presented by Leigh Nicolson, Thurrock Council. Key points
included:
 As part of developing local plan commissioned an Active Places
Strategy. Comprises four strands:
 Each strand contains a separate assessment of current provision and
a number of recommendations.
 Active places strategy will support HWB Strategy and support Local
Authority to with bids for funding.
David McKendry, KKP consultants, provided members with a Powerpoint
presentation. Key points included:
 Informed by engagement across the Council, external agencies (Sport
England, Sport Governing Bodies, user surveys. This included
primary and secondary school surveys, sports clubs.
 Assessment of the quality of pitches, open space sits and indoor sites
was completed, providing a clear evidence base.
 Key findings, underpinned by recommendations include increasing
capacity and quality of current pitches as opposed to creating new
playing pitches. The need to work with schools and education
establishments to consider the quality and accessibility of their
facilities was recognised and acknowledged.
During discussions the following points were made:
 One of the key objectives is to provide accessible facilities which was
welcomed by members
It was confirmed that this work was aligned with the local plan which
will support the creation of quality facilities using both existing
provision and improving quality.
 Members noted that responses to the Active Places Strategy (APS)
was quite low and welcomed the ongoing commitment of wider
engagement of communities, including the disabled community.
 The APS is the start of consulting with sports clubs and facilitates. As
the APS is taken forward there will be wider communication activity
with members of the public. The APS will support local clubs and
facilitates to bid for funding from Sports England by demonstrating
why facilitates need to be further developed. The APS identifies the
need for facilitates across the borough but does not specify where
those facilitates should be provided.
 Members welcomed the 5 Strategic recommendations and approved
the approach being adopted. We have a growing elderly population

Page 6

and an ever growing population of people with learning disabilities.
Members welcomed recommendations being tailored to reflect the
needs of older people and people with learning and physical
disabilities.
RESOLVED: Members noted and commented on the report.
6.

Initial Health Assessments for Looked After Children
This item was introduced by Sheila Murphy and Naintara Khosla. Key points
included:
 This is an update report on Initial Health Assessment to demonstrate
how Children’s Social care and Health colleagues are improving
performance on Initial Health Assessments of Looked after Children.
 A further report will be considered by HWB in January from health
colleagues who have been working closely with Children’s Services to
improve the timeliness and quality of Initial Health Assessments.
 There has been significant continued improvement over the last year
with changes being made to the process in August.
 Some challenges remain which include initial health assessments
being undertaken by other authorities. We are currently awaiting
guidance and information on 3 Initial Health Assessments from other
authorities.
During discussions the following points were made:
 Teams has helped to drive forward initial health assessments as they
facilitate the sharing of live data across partner agencies.
 Initial health assessments model should remain face to face as far as
practicable.
 Initial health assessments for the learning disabled have also been
improved.
 There are plans considering CCG mergers and the creation of
Integrated Care Systems and CCGs that are coterminous with the
wider footprint. It was agreed that there is a need to ensure that there
are structures that deliver change at scale, while continuing to focus
on place.
RESOLVED: Members noted and commented on the report. Members
agreed that Initial Assessments and their timeliness will be considered
by the Health and Wellbeing Board regularly.

7.

Worklessness and Health JSNA
This item was presented by Andrea Clement. Key points included:
 The Worklessness and Health Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) has been developed to gain an understanding of the
relationship between worklessness and health and the scale of this
issue in Thurrock. The focus of the JSNA is Employment Support
Allowance (ESA) claimants with mental health and/or musculoskeletal
(MSK) conditions.
 Key findings include
o Some types of Muscular Skeletal conditions in Thurrock are
increasing.

Page 7

o
o
o







There is a significantly higher prevalence of common mental
health conditions than EoE
There is variation across borough in number of ESA claimants
80 people (MSK) and 350 people (MH) may be able to return to
work with support

The local specialist offer is reasonably comprehensive for people with
mental health conditions, ranging from services such as Individual
Placement Support (IPS), which supports people with severe mental
health conditions to access and sustain work, to Signpost, which helps
all unemployed people with training and work readiness.
The JSNA report makes recommendations for addressing the gaps
identified in the JSNA. These can be broadly categorised into three
overarching high level recommendations. These are:
o Development of a worklessness and health strategy with a
framework of actions which encompasses both prevention and
assisting timely return to work.
o The development of a clear pathway that joins up all services
and allows claimants to be signposted to the most relevant
services in a timely and appropriate process.
o Development of a healthy workplace accreditation scheme for
Thurrock that ensures good practice in relation to health at
work and promotion of good health.
It was acknowledged that the report does not currently consider the
impacts of COVID-19 or the roll out of Universal Credit.

During discussions the following points were made:









The report was welcomed by members.
Members considered what can be done to address discriminatory
action from employers. Approaches could include accreditation of
employers and sharing of effective practice. Members acknowledged
that the council can influence employers.
Members acknowledged the potential long term impact of COVID on
the population of Thurrock and the economic challenges created. The
importance of supporting residents to remain in employment and
secure meaningful employment was recognised.
Members welcomed focus being provided on the workplace whereby
employers and not discriminating against people with mental health
MSK services have changed significantly since the report was written
and it was suggested that this might be reviewed to reflect the current
MSK position.
Members noted the challenge for GPs around issueing sick notes as it
can be a challenge for them to determine the type of work and
therefore the fitness of patients to undertake their work.

RESOLVED: Members noted, commented and approved the publication
of the report.
8.

Regional Care Market Workforce Strategy
This item was introduced by Ceri Armstrong. Key points included:

Page 8









The Eastern Association of Directors of Adult Social Services’
(ADASS) Market Development Group commissioned a Regional Care
Market Workforce Development Strategy in recognition of the vital link
between the social care workforce, market stability, the provision of
high quality and personalised care and the ability to overcome some
of the causes of market instability and inflexibility
It is important to ensure care work can be seen as a suitable position
as a career choice. Similarly in the NHS challenges can be
experienced in
The Strategy considers the creation of new roles across health and
social care to provide a suitable career choice for young people.
With 177,000 jobs in the Eastern Region Adult Social Care sector
(Skills for Care 2019) and the vast majority of those jobs being within
the Independent sector (81%), market development cannot be
successful without workforce development.
Adult Social Care are continuing to work with Mid and South Essex
Health and Care Partnership

During discussions the following points were made:













Members acknowledged the merits of joint recruitment and members
welcomed the strategies.
Members considered whether we are linking with the ATA
apprenticeship scheme and the kick start apprenticeship scheme for
young people.
Members agreed that this is a much needed Strategy and welcomed
the idea of considering peoples values as much as their skills, which
will be tested through the recruitment process. This is currently
piloting Wellbeing Teams whereby the recruitment was based around
values in addition to skills.
The workforce is likely to be one of the biggest challenges faced over
the next ten years and attracting staff. The majority of care is
delivered through private, voluntary and independent agencies.
Members noted that many staff received a minimum wage salary.
The need to support providers in terms of training and opportunities
and making it a career that is worthwhile for young people was
acknowledged by the Board. Members welcomed an action plan
being created for Thurrock on how we are going to recruit the right
employees.
Thurrock has the least number of GPS per population. Localities are
utilising Allied Health Care professionals, which have changed the
way in which services are delivered has changes and includes clinical
pharmacies, social prescribers.
It was agreed that BTUH would link with Ceri Armstrong
Members recognised that there is a finite number of professionals and
we need to ensure that staff are not moving from one part of the
system to another, as it was recognised that this is creating
challenges within individual parts of the system.

RESOLVED: Members noted, and endorsed the report and the Mid and
South Essex Care Partnership’s Workforce Strategy.

Page 9

9.

Delegated Primary Care Commissioning
This item was introduced by Rahul Chaudari. Key points included:
 Performance management of GPs will be retained by NHS England.
 Dental, community pharmacy will continue to be commissioned by
NHS England
 We have transformed the quality of practices over recent years
whereby all but 2 practices are now assessed by the CQC as good.
We are now in a position to take on greater delegated responsibility
from NHS England. GP Practices and wider partners are engaged
and support the application for delegated responsibility for Primary
Care Commissioning.
During discussions the following points were made:
 Members welcomed the report and supported the application
 Member agreed it provides opportunities to facilitate and reinforce
Thurrock’s place based agenda
 It was confirmed that it would be likely that this would remain at Place
level but some of the elements of contracts, performance
management and procurement may in future be overseen at system
level - but there may be subject to change.
 There is a Thurrock Primary Care commissioning arrangement being
set up. Members recognised that primary care is focussed at place
level but it is difficult to provide a definitive conclusion due to the
emerging national and local landscapes.
 Members queried whether a primary care committee at a merged
CCG level could delegate responsibility to manage primary care at
place level.
RESOLVED: Members noted and commented on the report.

10.

Think 111 Campaign
This item was introduced by Mark Tebbs. Key points included:
 It is important to get messages right around think 111. There is a
national programme which aims to make sure that A&E departments
are not full, potentially increasing the infection risk of COVID.
 To achieve the aim this programme of work will advise and encourage
people to think NHS111 first and should contact 111 who will book
appointments in A&E, reducing the waiting room population.
During discussions the following points were made:





Evaluation will include whether there are reasons why people are
accessing A&E
Members learned that the idea is to provide people with booked
appointments at A&E and where appropriate referrals are made to
another support service.
Members agreed that it is legitimate to triage access to A&E.
Important to engage with Thurrock Public Health to help identify whey
people are visiting A&E inappropriately while recording how many
people are being deferred to another service which delivers the
outcomes expected.

Page 10



It was agreed that this issue should be reconsidered by Board in
March with an update on how the new arrangement is working

The meeting finished at 16:36pm.
CHAIR………………………………..
DATE…………………………………

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9


28th January 2021

ITEM: 9

Health and Wellbeing Board
Initial Health Assessment (IHAs) – Looked After Children –
Update
Wards and communities affected:

Key Decision:

All

For information and consideration of key
recommendations.

Report of: Michael Addo-Boateng, Interim Designated Nurse, Children Looked After
– Thurrock Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
Ines Paris Associate Designate Nurse (Thurrock CCG)
Accountable Head of Service: Yvonne Anarfi, Designate Nurse Safeguarding
Children & Named Professional for Primary Care, Thurrock CCG
Accountable Director: Stephen Mayo, Deputy Chief Nurse, Thurrock CCG.
This report is Confidential
Executive Summary
This is a report from Thurrock CCG to the Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board on
local Initial Health Assessments.
According to verbal updates shared during the East of England Children Looked After
meetings last year, successfully undertaking Initial Health Assessments (IHAs) has
been a challenge for Health and Children Social Care (CSC) providers regionally. This
was corroborated by the Ofsted Inspection of Thurrock Children’s Social Care (TCSC)
in November 20191, which highlighted that “work to improve the timeliness of initial
health assessments is critical and necessary, particularly for unaccompanied asylumseeking children coming into care”. Despite of the acknowledgement of the issue, the
pace of change to achieve effective and sustained change has been slow.
NB: Looked After Children (LAC), Children Looked After (CLA) and Children in Care (CIC) are
terminologies that refer to the same cohort of children who are looked after by the Local
Authority. For the purpose of this report, and as the preferred denomination for this cohort of
children in Thurrock, they will be referred to as CLA.

1

https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50135827

Page 13

1



1.

Recommendation(s)

1.1

That Initial Health Assessments (IHA) and its timeliness is placed on the
agenda of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) for bi-annual review.

1.2

That the Members of the HWB are informed about the efforts made by
Thurrock Health (NELFT and Thurrock CCG) and TCSC CLA services to
improve the timelines of IHAs.

1.3

Thurrock CCG children’s commissioners to have further discussions with
external commissioners around what other steps can be taken to support
statutory regulations around IHA completion.

1.4

As proposed by NELFT and supported by DN LAC, that a jointly funded
role(s) is considered between Health and Children Social Care to aid
process to consistently achieve the 20-working days statutory
timeframes for IHAs.

1.5

Thurrock Health and Social Care Services to adhere to the SET-wide IHA
database, when launched.

1.6

For further consideration to be given to the joint commissioning of IHAs
across SET.

2.

Introduction and Background

2.1

Agencies across Thurrock have shared responsibilities to ensure that services
to CLA are effective and meet statutory requirements, as stipulated by
Promoting the Health and Well-being of Looked after Children (DfE, DoH 2015)
and section 10 and 11 of the Children Act (2004). These statutory guidance and
Act encourage cooperation amongst Local Authorities (LA), CCG and NHS
England to promote the welfare of CLA.

2.2

When a Child or Young Person becomes looked after, a statutory Initial Health
Assessment (IHA) is performed within 20 working days. According to an Essexwide agreement after a review of IHA pathway in 2018, it is expected that health
is notified of all children entering care in Southend, Essex and Thurrock (SET)
by working day 3, with the receipt of the completed notification form and
relevant consent to complete the IHA. The IHA referral form, from the social
worker, is expected to be available to health by day 5. This allows 15 working
days to complete the health assessment and return the BAAF Form Part C and
health action plan to the local authority.

2.3

After the initial assessment, children and young people receive Review Health
Assessments (RHAs): 6-monthly for 0-5-year-olds and annually for children
over the age of 5-19-years. RHAs conducted within Thurrock have consistently
achieved a KPI target of 100% according to performance data by Public Health
(PH). RHAs will not be discussed within this report, however its completion is
an integral part of the joined-up approach between health and social care.

Page 14

2



2.4

The IHA is a holistic assessment that involves the review of physical and mental
health needs, the analysis and assessment of past medical history, missed
health problems and missed screening opportunities (RCPCH, 20202). This is
a crucial initial assessment to ensure that these vulnerable children have the
right support in place. Any delays relating to the completion of these
assessments, as well as being a breach of statutory commitments for health
and social care partners, also risks further jeopardising the life chances of these
children.

2.4

As mentioned above, there have been concerns regarding the timeliness of
IHAs in Thurrock. IHA data reviews have been undertaken by the Thurrock
CCG on this matter to identify the cause of inconsistent timeframes and provide
support to address the challenges accordingly.

2.5

This report focuses on the performance data obtained by TCCG from the Health
Provider (North East London NHS Foundation Trust - NELFT). Of note, on 29th
December 2020, a COVID-19 major incident was declared by the Essex
Resilience Forum. The incident is impacting the Provider health organisation’s
ability to share information due to resources being diverted to support with the
on-going pandemic. For this reason, the information regarding Q3 performance
could not be obtained; instead, IHA performance from April – October 2020 has
been included below.

Table 1: NELFT IHA data – number requested and completed April – Oct 2020
Quality
Stand
Unit
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Requirement ard
Looked After
Children
(“LAC”)
IHAs completed
within 20
working days of
the child
becoming LAC
where complete
paperwork is
received from
CSC 5 or less
working days
after the child
became Looked
After.

2.6

2

Vol
100% (Completed
IHAs)
Vol
(Requests)

Percentage

3

2

6

7

2

5

5

3

3

7

12

2

5

6

100.0% 66.7% 85.7% 58.3% 100.0% 100.0% 83.3%

IHA performance indicator for Health (NELFT) stands at 100%. Over the period
of April to October, the targets were met three times (April, August and
September 2020) as indicated in the data above (Table 1). The issues around
the unmet IHA targets are explored below.

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/2020-12/initial_health_assessments_for_looked_after_children.pdf

Page 15

3



3.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1

IHAs not being performed against the statutory timescale is linked to difficulties
on both NELFT and TCSC sides. Information and discussions with both show
that the non-compliance with IHAs’ statutory timeframes can be linked to:
-

3.2

Communication and Information sharing between TCSC and NELFT
Challenges to NELFT staff in arranging and completing IHAs
Challenges associated with Children and Young People placed Out of Area

Communication and Information Sharing

3.2.1 Delays in NELFT receiving information from TCSC have been one of the pivotal
challenges to the timeliness of IHAs locally. These can be sub-divided into the
following:
 TCSC’s breach of the locally agreed 5-days to share IHA paperwork with
NELFT.
 Changes of address and information (which require referral re-submission
for amendment of information).
 Administrative difficulties – CLA in Court, CLA placement ended but
information was not shared with health Providers.
3.2.2

On receipt of paperwork from TCSC, the expectation is that NELFT arranges
appointments within 2 weeks, complete IHAs and return the results to TCSC by
day 20. Any changes to this process affect the ability to achieve the statutory
20-day target. Hence, the delayed arrival of paperwork has a rippling effect on
the subsequent activities which needs to take place before a completed health
assessment is returned to TCSC.

3.2.3 Regular weekly meetings between NELFT and TCSC commenced in
September 2020 to encourage the review of live data. The meetings have
enabled a joint approach to address the challenges. This joint approach further
encourages the discussion and escalation from TCSC directly to NELFT
Assistant Director or CLA Strategic Lead to address any gaps within their
respective services.
3.2.4 Data received from TCSC indicates that there have been improvements made
in the timely sharing of information with health in November and December
2020. Although improvements are being observed, they need to be embedded
and sustained over time.
3.2.5 Additionally, a project is undergoing to develop a technological solution to
support the processes and information sharing regarding CLA across
Southend, Essex and Thurrock (SET). Currently this digital database is being
trialled and a SET-wide launch is to be scheduled.

3.3 Challenges to NELFT staff in arranging and completing IHAs

Page 16

4



3.3.1 Further to the challenges stated in 3.2, NELFT have identified some further
challenges faced by their practitioners, such as:
- CYP not taken to appointment by Foster Carers
- Challenges in establishing contact with Foster carers
- Interpreters not attending booked appointments
- Young People refusing to have the assessment completed
3.3.2 From these, it is of special concern when children are not taken to appointments
by their Foster Carers. This is a current concern for Thurrock children, with 3
missed IHA appointments having been escalated to the CCG in December
2020. Contact was made with TCSC and cases escalated for investigation.
Early indication is that the placement was short-term and the children had
moved by the time the IHA appointment was due. However, IHA Provider had
not been informed about the children’s placement change.
3.3.3 NELFT has provided assurance to the CCG that medical appointments for the
completion of IHAs are prioritised. It is to be noted that, during the on-going
pandemic, a high number of IHAs have been conducted virtually. A SET-wide
COVID-19 IHA Pathway was produced and shared with SET Health Providers
on this matter, which requested that risk assessments are made on individual
cases to assess the suitability of assessments being completed virtually (or the
need to do those face to face). Despite this, virtual arrangements mean that
some of the IHAs completed have not involved physical examinations.
Assurances have been received by the CCG that once-a-week-clinic is held by
NELFT to conduct physical examination, if assessed as required. Furthermore,
anecdotal evidence shows that virtual assessments have been welcomed by
some CLA. Consideration will be given to the use of this platform in the future,
especially for hard to reach children and young people.
3.4 Thurrock Children Placed Out of Area (OOA)
3.4.1 IHA responses from OOA health authorities for Thurrock children are regularly
delayed and this contributes towards the challenges with meeting IHA
performance targets. OOA health providers do not prioritise the offer of an IHA
to Thurrock children, as they also report to struggle with long waiting lists for
theirs’ and CYP from other areas. When this happens, there is a clear
escalation process, which ensures this is escalated to the CCG and
arrangements made for children to be brought back to Thurrock for their
assessments, where appropriate.
3.4.2 Thurrock CCG have arrangements in place to support the Local Authority to
complete statutory health assessments for CLA within statutory timescales,
irrespective of whether the placement of the child is an emergency, short term
or in another CCG area. Thurrock Local Authority should always advise the
CCG when a child is initially accommodated. Where there is a placement, which
will require the involvement of another CCG, the child's originating CCG, and
receiving CCG should be informed, as well as the child's GP. Any changes in
placement whilst the child is looked after should be notified to the CCG. IHA

Page 17

5



Service provision for children placed out of the borough is responsibility of
commissioned services in that locality but is charged to Thurrock CCG.
3.4.3 December CLA data from TCSC shows that approximately 74% of CLA were
placed within 20 miles or less from Thurrock – this indicate a significant
improvement on previous years. As maintaining the 20-days statutory
requirements is also hampered by delayed returns of completed IHA from OOA
a joint role would enable effective data review on both sides.
3.4.4 In addition to this, feedback from a recently held stakeholders’ workshop on 23 rd
November 2020 evidenced interest for a potential joint commissioning for IHAs
across SET. Following the workshop, a report was sent to Health Executive
Forum (HEF) underlying the need and approval from stakeholders and
commissioners to consider the workings of a SET-wide approach.
3.5 Areas of Improvement
3.5.1 Although there have been some improvements reported by both Health and
TCSC partners on the issue of IHAs, areas for continued development or
improvement remain, and are as follows:


That the local relationship between NELFT and TCSC is sustained.



That the paperwork continues to be received by health from TCSC within 5
working days.



That, when there are changes to placement, or other issues affecting the ability
for CLA to attend IHAs, these are communicated promptly to health.



That a COVID recovery plan is in place to ensure no needs for CLA have been
missed due to the pandemic.



That the issues around OOA IHAs are improved.



That any relevant issues are escalated to the TCCG without delay.

3.5.2 Recommendations on this issue are outlined below.

4.

Reasons for Recommendation

Page 18

6



Recommendations

Reasons for Recommendations

1. That Initial Health Assessments (IHA) and
its timeliness is placed on the agenda of the
Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) for biannual review.

To update the Health and Wellbeing Board
about our Statutory Duty to complete Initial
Health Assessment for Children in Care and
how we are performing this duty.

2. That the Members of the HWB are To provide assurance to the Board
informed about the efforts made by Thurrock regarding progress made and escalate any
Health (NELFT and Thurrock CCG) and issues
TCSC CLA services to improve the timelines
of IHAs.
3. Thurrock CCG children’s commissioners Commissioner to commissioner (CCG-toto have further discussions with external CCG) discussions may help reduce delays in
commissioners around what other steps can receipt of OOA IHA paperwork.
be taken to support statutory regulations
around IHA completion.
4. As proposed by NELFT and supported by
DN LAC, that a jointly funded role(s) is
considered between Health and Children
Social Care to aid process to consistently
achieve the 20-working days statutory
timeframes for IHAs.

Explore the possibility of a joint funded post
between Health Provider and Thurrock
Children Social Care for IHAs (and RHAs)
operating with the aim to improving uptake
and following up with out of area providers
which tends to adversely impact on the
figures of Thurrock CLA IHAs and RHAs.

5. Thurrock Health and Social Care
Services to adhere to the SET-wide IHA
database, when launched.

This will ensure accessibility to both Health
and Social Care services and provide
ownership of the challenges identified in this
report as highlighted in 3.1., 3.2.2 and 3.2.4.
Joined commissioning with support a better
use of SET-wide resources to respond to
local challenges.

6. For further consideration to be given to
the joint commissioning of IHAs across
SET.

5.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1

The Corporate Parenting Committee received a verbal update on the progress
of IHA on the 5th January 2021 meeting.

5.2

Health (Thurrock CCG & NELFT), Thurrock Public Health and Thurrock
Children Social Care are aware and are actively contributing to the
improvement of the performance in achieving timely IHAs.

6.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

6.1

Addressing the issues of timely IHA for CLA children is a statutory responsibility
for Health and Social Care Children services and remains a high priority. From

Page 19

7



the measures implemented above would require periodic reviews to establishes
whether improvements are sustained.
7.

Implications
Failure to keep a tight focus on IHA and RHA for CLAs could adversely affect
this group of children, with the potential of significantly affecting their life
chances.

7.1

Financial
Potential cost pressure to system partners if business case for the joint funded
Health and Children Social Care Data Analyst post (Suggested by NELFT
based on the successful Thurrock First project for Adults Services) as detailed
reasons for recommendations C is approved. If the business case proceeds a
full cost benefits analysis will be undertaken.
Implications verified by:

7.2

N/A Report produced by Council Partner

Legal
Not Applicable Report produced by Council Partner

7.3

Diversity and Equality
Not Applicable Report produced by Council Partner

7.4

Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)
None

8.

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected
by copyright):
None

Report Ends

Page 20

8

Agenda Item 10


28 January 2021
Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board

ITEM: 10

Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health Services in Thurrock
Wards and communities affected:
All

Key Decision:
N/A

Report of: Helen Farmer Assistant Director of Integrated Commissioning for
Children and Young People Thurrock CCG.
Accountable Head of Service:
Accountable Director: Mark Tebbs, Alliance Director Thurrock NHS
This report is Public
Executive Summary
This report provides an update to Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board in regards to
the service provision for children and young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental
health. The paper describes the system wide and collaborative commissioning
approach taken locally and highlights how the partners across Thurrock are
addressing the needs of the youngest in our population. The benefits of collaboration
and integration is well presented in national strategic plans including the NHS Long
Term Plan (2019) and evidence base such the Thrive Framework for System
Change (Wolpert et al, 2019) and Whole School Approach Public Health England
(2015).
An amended version of this paper has been presented to the Brighter Futures
Partnership Board in November 2020.
1.

Recommendation(s)

1.1

This paper is for noting by the HWB Membership.

2.

Introduction and Background

2.1 The Brighter Futures Childrens Partnership Board are currently refreshing their strategic
plan and have identified a priority area for development as:
All Children and their families experience good emotional health and wellbeing.
2.2 This paper summarises the CCG and Council commissioned services currently in place
or in development as a brief for Thurrock Health and Wellbeing Board and includes the
current and anticipated impact of the Pandemic in relation to emotional wellbeing and mental
health for our children and young people.

Page 21


It excludes specialist commissioning (NHSE/I Tier 4) and other commissioning bodies such
as Police and Crime Commissioners.
2.3 Although not included in detail the importance of all services and professionals involved
in delivering care to either to children directly or their families have an important role to play.
Identification and ensuring emotional wellbeing and mental health is a focus and supported
proactively aligning with a whole family approach is considered best practice. Schools and
Colleges and services such as Childrens Centres, Prevention and Support Services, Early
Years provision, Community Health Services and the 0-19 Brighter Futures Childrens
services all provide vital support in this respect.
2.4 The development of this area within the Brighter Futures Strategy will be underpinned by
the principles of coproduction with a series of events in 2021, service mapping and analysis
of available data to inform needs and greater understanding of the services in Thurrock. The
ambition is to be able to further enhance integrated and systematic approach to supporting
emotional wellbeing and delivering the National ambitions of the NHS Long term plan Jan.
2019 and DOH and DoE Green paper: Transforming CYP Mental Health provision 2017.
2.5 Thurrock services across the Council, NHS, Voluntary sector have a strong partnership
ethos with opportunities for shared pathways, integrated care founded on good relationships
which facilitate positive dialogue and joint problem solving. Although there has been
progress and much to celebrate there is undoubtedly significant need and much more to
achieve. This foundation is well established and will support continued improvement as there
remains considerable challenges to face if we are to address health inequalities and ensure
our children have the best start in life.

3.0 Pandemic- Impact on Children and Young People Emotional Wellbeing and Mental
Health
3.1 Whilst for some children there were certain aspects of the pandemic that bring benefits
such as spending more time with the family and minimising the impact of peer pressure and
school attainment many of our most vulnerable children the continued disruption will lead to
escalating needs and compounding of inequalities.
NHS Digital completed a survey in 2020 and found that:16% of CYP aged 5-16 years have a
probable mental health disorder, significantly higher that the proportion reported in the 2017

Page 22


survey of 10.8%. The survey also found that for those with a probable mental health disorder
the impact of the pandemic is heighted compared to those without.
Alongside those with mental health disorders a variety of literature papers and surveys which
highlight the heighted impact on groups of children who would be considered more
vulnerable and at risk of mental health issues either relating to direct exposure or impact of
quarantine or lockdown periods.
These groups include:
 CYP who have been bereaved by covid
 Children who suffer from severe covid
 Children with special educational needs and disabilities
 Young carers
 Children of key workers
 Children in families with low income or unemployment
 Children kept in stricter isolation or quarantine
 Children whose parents have a long term physical or mental health condition
3.2 It is also estimated that this pandemic has impacted upon mental health of the general
population of CYP. The Centre for Mental health has estimated the prevalence of depression
in this age group may increase to over 21% which would equate to 9,647 new cases in
Thurrock.
Nationally we expect a prolonged surge in demand for services and an increased prevalence
among certain types of mental health problems for children and young people (CYP) due to
the impact of lock down and the pandemic. NHSE/I and DfE are currently reviewing plans to
enhance and accelerate the CYPMH capacity LTP ambitions.
3.3. Although there have been a variety of published reports so far in the pandemic which
indicate both short and long-term impact for CYP quantifying this is challenging and often
based on previous experiences and studies. Between 20-30% of young people who are
survivors of an incident are at risk of developing a major depressive disorder in the first few
months compared to the general population of 4-10%. The prevalence of PTSD is also high
in CYP exposed to an incident or emergency.
3.4 We expect to see a rise in depression and anxiety not just as a direct impact of Covid 19
but wider determinants including bereavement, relationship breakdown, job loss, financial
hardship and the wider economic impact. There is also a greater risk of Children being
exposed to adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) including:
 Domestic abuse
 Parental abandonment through separation or divorce
 A parent with Mental health condition
 Being the victim of abuse (physical, sexual and /or emotional)
 Being the victim of neglect
 A member of household being in prison
 Growing up in a household which there are adults experiencing alcohol and drug use
problems.
We also expect the rise in prevalence to be prolonged and measured in years rather than
months.
3.5 The State of the Nation: Children and young people’s wellbeing published Oct 2020
focussed on the impact of Covid 19. Although this found that elements of wellbeing have

Page 23


remained stable key areas of concern included friendships, worries and the future
employment and the differential impact for some groups.
4.0 Mental Health Support Teams in Schools (MHST’s)
4.1 14 schools are part of this National programme in Thurrock together with South Essex
College
Mid and South Essex Health and Care Partnership have successfully applied to be part of
the National DfE and NHSE/I programme securing additional investment for 6 MHST teams
in total. Commissioners have worked very closely with NELFT who are delivering this service
commissioned by the 5 CCGs. NELFT have developed significant experience and expertise
in this National programme providing both teams in Kent and Essex and one of the largest
providers in England currently. The close working with our EWMHs service is seen as a
significant advantage enabling early identification and providing an important link between
our CYP MH service and schools and colleges.
4.2 Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) is a new service designed to help meet the
mental health and emotional wellbeing needs of children and young people in education
settings. They are made up of Children and Young People’s Mental Health Practitioners and
Education Mental Health Practitioners (EMHPs) and senior clinical staff.
4.3 The MHSTs have remained operational during Covid-19 with development of ongoing
support being adapted to meet the needs of educational settings with online 1:1
interventions and virtual workshops/groups delivered to parents/carers and teaching staff.
However, EMHP course requirements and clinical hours have been impacted and this has
caused a time delay to achieve qualification. However, it is anticipated that 12 EMHPs are
now expected to pass their course by January 2021 rather than September 20 as originally
intended.
4.4 As part of the MHST national programme, Mid and South Essex Health and Care
Partnership have three operational teams as part of the wave 1 2019/2020 programme
which has continued work towards a fully operational service with soft launches across 25
schools and college, these include:




Thurrock MHST
Southend MHST
Further Education MHST (South Essex College and Chelmsford)

We have subsequently successfully bid for 3 additional new teams as part of the wave 4
2020/21 programme and this footprint include these Essex geographical areas:  Basildon MHST
 Braintree MHST
 Maldon MHST
The MHST service has three core functions:




To deliver brief evidence-based interventions to support children and young people
with mild-moderate mental health problems;
To support schools in developing their whole school approach to mental health;
To provide timely advice to school staff and liaison with external services, to help
children and young people to get the right help and stay in education.

Page 24


Co-production and engagement approach - emphasis on planning, developing, delivering
and evaluating services in true partnership with service users, providers and provide ongoing
communication resource to schools and colleges taking part in the MHST programme so
there are consistent messages.
4.5 Impact and Outcomes:
As well as direct referrals for individual support indicated in the tables below a range of
activities have been delivered since September for Thurrock including:
 Education Staff Training reaching 90 staff
 Assemblies, classroom and workshops reaching 184 CYP
MHST case referrals
reporting period includes Q4, Q1 and Q2
Further
education
MHST
Total number of referrals received:
15

Southend
MHST

Thurrock MHST

53

48

14

49

46

29

102

94

count of referrals submitted in the reporting period, where the person was
under 18 at the time of referral

Total number of referrals accepted: new referrals received that
were not rejected

Number of people being supported by MHST: count of people
with an open referral

The data analysis shows the primary reason for referral was recorded as anxiety.
MHST number of referrals by age
reporting period includes Q4, Q1 and Q2
Further
Southend
Thurrock MHST
education
MHST
MHST
0-4
0
2
2
5-7
2
8
7
8-10
1
9
20
11-13
0
15
12
14-16
7
11
4
17-19
4
4
1
The data analysis shows the age breakdown of referrals received by age with the highest recorded in
8-10 years.

Page 25



5.0 Schools Wellbeing Service
5.1 The Schools Wellbeing Service is jointly funded by partners in Thurrock and launched in
September 2019.The service integrates embeds and strengthens existing services to
provide training, workshops and reflective practice for Educational Mental health Leads and
Staff. The SWS provides a whole school approach rather than direct interventions to
enhance the knowledge, skills and confidence in promoting good mental health, supporting
those experiencing difficulties and knowing when to provide universal, targeted or refer to
specialist services.
5.2 Covid 19 impacted on the delivery and the plans were adapted and modified to meet the
emerging needs. A support line was established that could be easily accessed by phone or
email for school, staff and families. It was open from 8am-6pm and staffed by Educational
Psychologists and SWS providing immediate and expert advice and support. A range of
resources was developed and distributed across the system for both health and school
professionals to ensure maximin reach for families.

Page 26


5.3 The service also worked with MIND to produce a range of short videos to increase
awareness of maintaining positive wellbeing and how to support transition back to school.
As a result of this and wider excellent work by schools in Thurrock the attendance rate when
schools reopened achieved normal expected rates of 92% and seen as exceptional
achievement regionally when compared to other areas.
5.4 The SWS has supported individual school needs assessment to enable bespoke
packages of support and intervention meeting the individual needs of their CYP. The
Brighter Futures Survey is being re-established and a full external evaluation of the service
has commenced but required adaptation from the original model due to Covid19.
All schools now have an identified MH lead and further investment to enhance training from
DfE has been received.
5.5 The SWS is currently being externally evaluated by University of East Anglia although
some amendments to the evaluation model have been agreed due to the impact of the
pandemic.
6.0 Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Service
6.1 The current contract for EWMHs ends In Jan 2022 and the collaborative commissioning
forum (CCF) has initiated the procurement process. This is supported by Attain and led by
West Essex CCG as the Host Commissioners. Market engagement events have been held
in October 2021. It is anticipated that contract award will take place by September 2021 with
new service mobilisation between Sept 21- Jan 22 and contract start date of the 1st February
subject to any impact of the pandemic.
6.2 EWMH service has continued as a priority service during the Pandemic and Thurrock are
delivering business as usual albeit through altered models of delivery.
Clinical triage and risk assessments are in place to ensure direct interventions are delivered
where required following the infection control and PPE measures. Reporting approaches
have been adapted to ensure the system continues to understand the needs, presentations
and performance.
6.3 As the national picture indicates the referral rates have increased especially within the
crisis teams. This is following a significant decrease during the first months of the pandemic,
a concerning picture seen by all childrens services.
Thurrock data set:
July
Aug
Sept
Total
SPA Non-urgent
78
62
109
249
SPA Urgent
36
22
37
95
Crisis
15
8
15
38
Team/Intensive
Support Service
NELFT have a Command and Control Trust wide Tactical group to manage Covid19 and
planning for the second wave with meetings with the Lead Commissioner to ensure effective
communication of risks and issues.
6.4 The Youth Offending Team is supported by the integrated model with an allocated
EWMHs practitioner, speech and Language therapist and Educational Psychologist
providing an effective response and care for this complex cohort of CYP.
The ISS and Crisis Model for Essex has been recognised as good practice and presented at
a number of regional forums. The National requirement to have a 24/7 crisis provision

Page 27


implemented due to Covid was already established as part of business as usual and
enhanced last year through the ISS.
6.5 There has been an increase to the ISS offer to reduce A&E attendances and reduce tier
4 admissions.
6.6 The Care Education and Review (CETR) process has remained in place to ensure
identification and joint working for those with escalating needs. From April 2019 to date 19
CETR were carried out resulting in no admissions for those young people. There were 81
CETRs in total across the MSE. As at August 2020 there were 2 admissions to Tier 4
specialist inpatient provision for CYP.
6.7 The request for additional A&E MH support for CYP has been submitted as part of the
winter planning for Mid and South Essex and we were successful at securing funding for 3
additional posts.
6.8 The Collaborative Commissioning Forum and West Essex CCG are working closely with
NELFT with further investment planned for key areas in 2021/22 these include
1. Build capacity within the specialist LD MH team
2. Introduce a digital offer for CBT via Silver Cloud
3. Build greater capacity for Crisis Support
4. Build capacity within the MH offer for CYP with Autism.
7.0 Triple P Online
7.1This is online parenting resource for families and has been commissioned across Essex
and is being delivered through 30 services from a variety of sectors. This resource went live
in February 2020 and since then over 1100 families have been issued codes and accessing
the support.15 Practitioners also completed the 3-day targeted Stepping Stones Training for
Autism support. The contract has been extended until Feb 2022 with an additional 30
training places for Stepping Stones.
7.2 During Covid 19 this digital approach has been suited to the delivery models of many
services enabling families who cannot attend face to face appointments to work alongside
their practitioner through this evidenced based approach. The test and learn approach in
Southend Essex and Thurrock have been one of the largest programmes undertaken by this
International Company and is being fully evaluated. The programme is being targeted for
those families struggling with conduct and behaviour concerns and the possibility of early
onset neurodevelopmental presentations.
7.3 A supported digital platform response and resource provides a reliable approach which
offers the following:
 Consistency and quality approach
 Delivery at scale with a wide reach
 Effective implementation timescale
 Value for money
 Applicable to access targets (currently being explored)
 Applicable to NHS 10-year plan regarding neurodevelopmental support.
The anticipated impact includes:
 Early intervention and advice for families
 Increased access for families
 Upskilling and empowerment for families.
 Support appropriate referrals to secondary care services

Page 28


 Support demand management approaches
 Additional resource/capacity within EWMHs and other Community services.
7.4 The pre-intervention data is suggesting that there has been effective recruitment of
parents with substantial challenge. Conduct problems and hyperactivity are the most severe
with 79% and 74% of parents in the non-typical range.
The data so far indicates at the end of TPOL parents show a higher level of confidence at
managing behaviours effectively.
8.0 Infant Mental Health -Together with Baby Service
8.1 It is important to note the impact not only for school age children but babies and toddlers.
The evidence is unequivocal that the first 1,001 days of a childs life, from conception to age
two lays the foundations physiologically for good physical and mental health in the long term
and the influences of attachment and nurturing at this stage is vital.
8.2 There have been over 2500 new births during this period in Thurrock without the social
networks or normal delivery of service provision available to support during this time. The
PNMH service and Infant Mental health Service (Together with baby) have reported an
increase in acuity of need and the continuing risks of social isolation during lockdown not
only on the parents but the development of the babies. This has been evidenced by an
increase in admission rates to Mother and Baby Units for those with most serious and lifethreatening cases.
8.3 The Babies in Lockdown report captures the experiences of respondents and highlights
the range of issues parents faced, the lack of support for families, and the inequalities in
babies’ early experiences. For example:
 Almost 7 in 10 found their ability to cope with their pregnancy or baby had been
impacted as a result of COVID-19.
 Nearly 7 in 10 felt the changes brought about by COVID-19 were affecting their
unborn baby, baby or young child.
 Only one third expressed confidence in being able to access mental health support if
required.
 Many families with lower incomes, from Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities
and young parents have been hit harder by the COVID-19 pandemic and were less
likely to receive the support they needed. This is likely to have widened existing
inequalities.
8.4 Southend, Essex and Thurrock are one of a few areas across the UK to have a
dedicated Infant Mental Health Service. Since the service launched in April 2019 293
referrals have been received with 121 having currently received direct intervention.
A 6-week module for all practitioners involved in infant care has been developed and
benchmarked and quality assured against the Association of Infant Mental Health
Competencies Framework. 120 practitioners completed this course between Oct-Nov 2020
with further cohorts planned for 2021.
8.5 The development of this service has continued during lockdown and has seen an
increasing number of referrals and levels of need. Discussions with universal service
provisions and wider partners through the Covid 19 workstream has identified the continued
prioritisation of early years and universal provision along with the specialist services remains
essential.

Page 29


8.6 Professionals across agencies have identified that families sit below the threshold of
targeted support but due to lockdown are presenting with high levels of anxiety and concerns
with isolation being a key feature.
8.7 The commissioning and development of Together with baby a pan Essex service has
been a partnership between the CCG, EPUT, Parent Infant Foundation and Big Lottery. This
collaborative model of commissioning is now being replicated across Scotland and Devon
demonstrating the innovation and success of the approach so far.
9.0 National Mentor for Personal Health Budgets in CYP Mental Health
9.1 Thurrock CCG has been selected to be a National Mentor for Persona centre care plan
model for children and young people’s mental health services following the success of
Thurrock Positive Pathways.
This pathway is delivered by Thurrock and Brentwood Mind for children progressing to
discharge from EWMHs who would benefit from support to transition into a bright and
resilient future in their community.
9.2 The model focusses on co-producing with the young person a personalised care and
support plan that agrees what is important for that young person and how to develop and
strengthen protective factors to ensure good mental health and wellbeing. If community
services are not available to help achieve those outcomes the practitioner can request
consideration of a Personal health Budget.
Since inception the model has seen 42 young people, all who have a personalised care and
support plan of which 7 have an active PHB in place.
9.3 This model demonstrates the Thurrock strengths based, community approach that is
person centred and outcomes focussed as many opportunities have been accessed for both
the young person and their family with the additional support and expertise of the youth
facilitator from MIND. This has led to young people returning to school, being successfully
employed and becoming volunteers as trained MIND mentors themselves.
A suite of videos has been produced that tell the story of the Positive Pathway development
and showcases the journeys through the eyes and voices of the young persona and their
family.
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U7wL0UMiGH0

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3Q3A1MKz4n8
9.4 As a member of the mentor programme, Thurrock are host of the Community of Practice
and have organised a programme of events for sharing and learning to build and promote
personalised care and PHBs in CAMHS services as well as presenting at National events.
10 Open Door
10.1 Open Door are a well-established third sector provider in Thurrock with close working
relationships with schools and childrens services. Open Door offer a range of services
including Counselling, Anger Management. Play therapy and mediation.
10.2 During Covid 19 referrals into this service have remained consistent and in fact are
reflective of similar figures to last year. We received 46 referrals for September 2020 and
51 in September 2019. The only month that dropped slightly was in April 2020 which was
realistically the first full month of lockdown with everyone adjusting to the new procedures
and measures. Attendance via zoom and other virtual platforms have remained high and in
line with the same period from last year when we were only carrying out face to face. Young

Page 30


people and parents have adapted well to the current conditions and ways in which sessions
have been carried out. The main referral reasons have changed slightly with anxiety being
the highest referral reason recently in comparison to anger/behaviour last year. Anxiety is
generally around parents, financial and employment issues and fear of death of loved
ones/bereavement and returning to school.
10.3 The difficulties that we have encountered are lack of devices within a family home so
many young people have to share or borrow for a session and also not all families have
enough data throughout the month for sessions to be via a virtual platform. In this instance
phone sessions are utilised.
Conclusion
The refresh of the Brighter Futures Strategy provides an opportunity to further strengthen the
integration of service provision in Thurrock. This will take an appreciative enquiry approach
learning and building on the positive outcomes demonstrated by local models of practice.
Thurrock have developed a variety of integrated approaches for children where effective
collaboration is having a positive impact for children. Examples can be seen in our Youth
Offending Team, Brighter Futures 0-19 Services, SEND Early Support Panel, Multiagency
Safeguarding Hub and our positive Pathways, MHSTs and Integrated Community Teams.
Further integration of service provision and delivery of health and care can undoubtedly
deliver the continuous improvements we all strive to deliver and in doing so address the
needs emerging as a consequence of the pandemic and also address the longer-term health
inequalities.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11


ITEM: 11

28 January 2021
Health and Wellbeing Board

Southend, Essex and Thurrock Dementia Strategy Refresh
Wards and communities affected:

Key Decision:

All

Non-key

Report of: Catherine Wilson, Strategic Lead – Commissioning and Procurement
(Adults, Housing and Health)
Accountable Head of Service: Les Billingham, Assistant Director - Adult Social
Care and Community Development (Adults, Housing and Health).
Accountable Director: Roger Harris, Corporate Director for Adults, Housing and
Health
This report is Public
Executive Summary
The current Southend, Essex and Thurrock joint Health and Social Care Dementia
strategy ends in 2021. This report details our plans to refresh the strategy in light of
our progress over the four year period and in response to how the system and
people with dementia and their carers have coped during the pandemic.
Covid-19 will make more traditional forms of face to face engagement and
consultation difficult. This report sets out the proposed mechanism of consultation
within current constraints.
1.

Recommendation(s)

1.1

To agree the proposed approach and timeframes in the development of
the Pan Essex Dementia Strategy (Health and Social Care) and Thurrock
specific implementation plan.

2.

Introduction and Background

2.1

It is recognised that we deliver better outcomes to People with Dementia and
their Carers when we have effective joint working between Health and Social
Care and between local authorities in the greater Essex area.

2.2

In 2017 an overarching Southend, Essex and Thurrock Dementia Strategy
was agreed by all partners. A Thurrock specific action/implementation plan
was also developed/approved at this time.

Page 33



2.3

Our current strategy and associated action/implementation plan drove
improvements for people with dementia and their carers in Thurrock including;

Improvement Area
Greater identification and
diagnosis

Better support to those
recently diagnosed

Improved crisis support

More understanding of
dementia within the
community

Improved support to care
homes.

2.4

Developments in Health and Social Care
Work undertaken with GP’s and the formation of
memory clinics within Thurrock led to a greater
identification and diagnosis of people with
dementia. Memory clinics have routinely met
targets throughout the period of the strategy
and have continued a higher than average level
of diagnosis during the pandemic.
The Better Care Fund has funded an
Alzheimer’s Society worker within Thurrock’s
memory clinic to support those recently
diagnosed and their families. This also means
they are able to sign post them to ongoing
support both within the Alzheimer’s Society and
wider health and social care system.
Dementia Crisis Support Team developed that
also works across Thurrock. This service has
been invaluable in advoiding unnecessary
admissions to both care homes and health
services. Thurrock was the one area that
integrated a social worker into the team (post
has recently become vacant) which led to a far
more seamless and responsive service for
people in the area.
Thurrock was one of the first councils to commit
to becoming dementia friendly. A Dementia
Action Alliance (DAA) was formed to enable
people in Thurrock to live well with dementia.
They are attempting to create more dementia
champions and develop a greater awareness of
dementia in the community.
Dedicated physical and mental health nursing
team to support care homes in the area to avoid
unnecessary admissions. As part of this they
help to improve the care of people with
dementia in this setting. They work well with
social care staff and were incredibly supportive
to care homes in the care of people with
dementia during the first wave.

It has been a very difficult time for people with dementia and their carers over
the last nine months. Health and social care partners believe that there are
things we can learn from this period about how the system responded (what

Page 34



we do well and what we need to improve) that we may want to
incorporate/strengthen in longer term plans.
2.5

As such, we are proposing a refresh of the Southend, Essex and Thurrock
Dementia Strategy. The pandemic will make some of the usual
avenues/approaches to consultation and involvement difficult. As such, this
report also details our proposals to overcome/mitigate these issues.

2.6

As people with dementia and their carers lives have been overly affected by
Covid-19 we are proposing that an on-line engagement takes place using
Thurrock Councils consultation portal (other LA’s will use their equivalent).
This will be in mid-February for a period of eight weeks to shape priorities in
the refreshed strategy.

2.7

In addition to our internal Communications Team, we plan to alert partners
such as Healthwatch, Alzheimer’s Society, Thurrock Carer’s Service,
Dementia Action Alliance (DAA) once we have finalised dates and use these
existing mechanisms of involvement already available to us to promote the
consultation.

2.8

This consultation will be in two parts. The first part will gather people’s views
on our existing priorities contained in the 2017-21 strategy (are they still
relevant? have they changed?). The second part of the consultation is being
used to make sure we capture what the current situation is for people with
dementia and their carers and what they feel the future might look like for
them.

2.9

We will share our anonymised consultation findings with Essex County
Council who are co-ordinating, Southend Council and Health Partners. The
consultation findings alongside national priorities (when published1) will form
the basis of the strategy development.

2.10

A virtual steering group will then oversee the development of a draft strategy.
Thurrock Council representation will be from the Adult Social Care
Commissioning Team, who will also arrange the participation of other
parties/representatives.

2.11

Once a draft has been developed further consultation will take place and
again Commissioning will take the lead in the promotion of the draft strategy
for comment.

2.12

The strategy is a high level plan setting the direction of travel and should in
addition to our consultation results be shaped by national priorities and
Alzheimer’s Society and Carers UK research, who in turn have their own
engagement mechanisms.

NB: We were expecting to have received published priorities from central government by now – the priority
areas in our current strategy which were defined by people with dementia and their carers in the wider Essex
area largely mirrored the national picture in 2017. As such, it would be helpful to have this ‘sense check’ when
developing ours. The national strategy also normally has greater/wider mechanisms for consultation available
1

Page 35



2.13

As such, we propose that in these difficult circumstances we prioritise the
greatest level of involvement of people with dementia, their carers and
representative in the development of the resulting local action/implementation
plan so they can meaningfully shape what services look like for them in their
community.

2.14

We will review what involvement mechanisms are available to us at the point
we develop the Thurrock action/implementation plan as the current
vaccination programme may have created more freedom to carry out face-toface engagement for those without digital resources by this point in the year.

3.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1

Consideration was given by partners to delaying the refresh of the Dementia
Strategy. However, because so much has changed over the last four years
and during the pandemic - It was felt by partners that it would be of benefit to
people with dementia and their carers if we were able to progress with its
development.

4.

Reasons for Recommendation

4.1

That the Health and Wellbeing Board agree to the proposed timeframes and
mechanisms for consultation in the development of the Southend, Essex and
Thurrock Dementia Strategy 2021 – 2025.

5.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1

Please see section 2 which details the proposed methods of consultation.

6.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

6.1

The development of this strategy meets the corporate priority around ‘People’.
Specifically building ‘on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary
and faith groups to work together to improve health and wellbeing’.

6.2

This is a partnership strategy across health and social care in order to give
people with dementia and their carers more joined up services that can meet
their needs. Although other community and voluntary groups are part of this,
it will be developed and delivered largely by those supporting people with
dementia and/or their carers.

7.

Implications

7.1

Financial
Implications verified by:

Verification not received

Page 36



There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.
7.2

Legal
Implications verified by:

Lindsey Marks
Deputy Head of Law

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.
7.3

Diversity and Equality
Implications verified by:

Verification not received

There are no adverse implications arising from this report. The report seeks
to engage people with dementia and their carers in the development of a new
strategy. The strategy will seek to improve services and support available
from health and social care and the wider community.
7.4

Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)
The impact of developing this strategy should be positive. We are looking to
identify improvements to services and greater co-ordination between local
authorities and health and social care.

8.

9.

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected
by copyright):


Southend, Essex and Thurrock Dementia Strategy 2017-2021
https://www.livingwellessex.org/media/523329/Dementia-Strategy.pdf



Southend, Essex and Thurrock Dementia Strategy – Thurrock
Implementation Plan
https://democracy.thurrock.gov.uk/documents/s21490/Essex%20Southend%20and
%20Thurrock%20Dementia%20Strategy%202017-2021%20%20Thurrock%20Implementation%20Plan.%20Appendix%201.pdf

Appendices to the report

Report Author:
Sarah Turner
Commissioning Manager
Adult Social Care

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12


ITEM: 12

28 January 2021
Health and Wellbeing Board
Essex Sexual Abuse Strategy
Wards and communities affected:

Key Decision:

All

No

Report of: Greg Myddelton, Police Fire Crime Commissioner Office
Accountable Strategic Lead: Cheryl Wells,
Community Safety, Emergency Planning & Resilience
Accountable Director: Julie Rogers, Environment, Highways and Counter Fraud
This report is Public
Executive Summary
The Essex Sexual Abuse Strategy represents the county’s first partnership strategy
to focus on sexual abuse; bringing together a range of stakeholders that all have a
role to play in preventing and reducing sexual abuse, as well as ensuring
perpetrators are brought to justice. The strategy’s vision is “for partners to work
together to prevent the volume and impact of sexual violence and abuse in
Southend, Essex and Thurrock” and it focuses on the key themes of prevention,
victim services, awareness/communications, partnership working across the criminal
justice system, and perpetrators. The strategy includes specific objectives for each
theme, and an outcomes framework which makes it clear what the ambition of the
partnership is, including a clear understanding of consent amongst children and
young people, giving victims access to appropriate support, and increasing the rate
of sexual abuse charges and prosecutions.
The strategy has been developed using existing resources such as the national
Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) strategy, the NHS England Strategic
direction for sexual assault and abuse services as well as local strategies including
the Thurrock VAWG strategy, and Thurrock’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on
sexual violence and abuse.
1.

Recommendation(s)

1.1

The Board is asked to endorse the strategy and consider how their
organisations might help to deliver the strategy’s objectives in
Thurrock.

Page 39



2.

Introduction and Background

2.1

The Crime Survey of England and Wales estimates that 20% of women and
4% of men have experienced some type of sexual assault since the age of 16.
In Essex this equates to around 300,000 people. The demand for support has
increased over recent years as the issue has become increasingly prominent
due to high profile cases and coverage on social and mainstream media.

2.2

Nationally, there has been an increasing focus on sexual abuse in recent
years, for instance the ongoing Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse
(IICSA) as well as publications such as the Home Office VAWG strategy
(2016) and NHS strategic direction for sexual abuse support (2018). This
strategy is the first attempt to develop a local strategic response to sexual
abuse that articulates how the partnership will tackle sexual abuse. As well as
it being imperative to develop the strategy in response to the growing need in
Essex, a partnership sexual abuse strategy is also a recommendation in the
Home Office Commissioning toolkit for sexual abuse, 2019

3.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1

Demand for specialist support services for victims of sexual abuse in Essex
has increased consistently and significantly over recent years. A chart in the
full strategy shows it increased from 2,195 in 2017-18 to 4,173 in the most
recent quarter (data provided by Synergy Rape Crisis Partnership).

3.2

The Police Fire Crime Commissioner (PFCC) commissions a whole-county,
specialist support service for victims of sexual abuse and the forensic medical
provision through the Essex Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC). Essex
is one of 5 local PFCC areas that successfully applied to receive devolved
Rape Support Funding from Ministry of Justice.

4.

Reasons for Recommendation

4.1

We are seeking a collective buy-in to this strategy from key stakeholders.
Sexual violence and abuse cannot be tackled by an individual agency; it is
best approached in partnership with a number of key outcomes and objectives
and a collective understanding of how, when, and by whom these will be
achieved.

5.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

5.1

This strategy was developed by the Essex Sexual Abuse Strategic
Partnership and has been presented to the Essex Leaders and Chief
Executives Forum, the Essex, Southend and Thurrock Safeguarding Boards,
Health Executive Forum, Essex Police Strategic Board, individual CCG
executive boards, the Essex Children’s Partnership, Essex Criminal Justice
Board, Safer Essex and the integrated health and justice commissioning
group. More recently it was discussed and endorsed at the new Thurrock

Page 40



Sexual Violence and Abuse Partnership Board, which the PFCC office are
members of. This Board will facilitate the implementation of the Thurrock
Sexual Violence and Abuse Action Plan.
5.2

The development of the strategy has been an iterative process over recent
years and will continue to evolve in response to stakeholder engagement,
good practice, and relevant updates in local and national data or policy.

6.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

6.1

This will complement existing delivery on the Thurrock Community Safety
Partnership priority for 20/22 of Violence Against Women and Girls – including
domestic abuse, sexual offences, stalking and rape of all genders

6.2

This strategy will complement the ongoing work in Thurrock which is
delivering the recommendations from the Thurrock JSNA on Sexual Violence
& Abuse.

7.

Implications

7.1

Financial
Implications verified by:

Laura Last, Senior Management Accountant
(Environment, Highways & Counter Fraud
Directorate, Place Directorate and Property

There are no financial implications arising from this report
7.2

Legal
Implications verified by:

Lindsey Marks
Deputy Head of Law

There are no legal implications arising from this report
7.3

Diversity and Equality
Implications verified by:

N/A report produced by Council Partner

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed across SET and
the findings are recognised within the strategy
7.4

Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)
This strategy will support the Council and its Partners to ensure that they are
delivering on its commitments to Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act.

Page 41



8.

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected
by copyright):
 Essex Sexual Abuse Strategy

9.

Appendices to the report


Essex Sexual Abuse Strategy EIA

Report Author:
Greg Myddelton
Strategic Head of Partnerships and Delivery
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Essex

Page 42

Southend, Essex and
Thurrock Sexual Violence
and Abuse Strategy
2020 – 2023
Version 1 (Nov 2019)

Page 43

Contents
Foreword									3
Definition of sexual violence and abuse					

4

Background									4
Governance									7
Strategic Vision								8
Mission Statement								8
Objectives									9
Outcomes framework								12
Appendix A: Commissioning responsibilities

14

			

Appendix B 									15

Page 44
2

Foreword
I’m delighted to introduce the Southend, Essex and Thurrock Sexual Violence and Abuse Strategy.
This strategy is the first of its kind and has been created by partners from the Essex Sexual Abuse
Strategic Partnership, and brings together learnings from public and voluntary sectors, national
research and experiences from victims of crime. I wish to share my gratitude to all those that have
helped to develop this strategy and committed to support this key area of work, and who have
helped increase our understanding of the current picture across Southend, Essex and Thurrock.
Rape and sexual abuse are heinous crimes which have a significant and long-lasting impact on
victims, their families, and the local community. A partnership response to sexual violence and
abuse is vital in order to prevent harm, support victims, identify perpetrators and ensure there is
clear communication and a joined up criminal justice response.
Within 2019 partners demonstrated what can be achieved when working together with the
development of;
•

The Essex First Responders project, which ensures victims of crime receive support within
24 hours from when they choose to report the crime

•

The rollout of the Drink Aware initiative, which is a preventative programme safeguarding
those that are most vulnerable during the night time economy working with local
businesses, third sector agencies and Police.

This strategy provides a clear strategic vision and focus for the partnership. It also further
establishes the commitment of key strategic partners to protect and keep safe those that have
been victims of, or may be vulnerable to sexual violence or abuse across Southend, Essex and
Thurrock.

Detective Superintendent Neil Pudney
Crime and Public Protection Command
Chair of the Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership

Page 45
3

Definition of sexual violence and abuse
Sexual violence and abuse is any behaviour (physical, verbal, virtual/digital) perceived to be of
a sexual nature which is controlling, coercive, exploitive, harmful or unwanted that is inflicted
on anyone (irrespective of age, ethnicity, religion, gender or sexual orientation) without their
informed consent or understanding. Sexual violence including but not limited to rape, sexual
assault, child sexual abuse or child sexual exploitation.
Child Sexual Abuse includes any sexual act with a child perpetrated by an adult or older child. It
might include sexual touching, penetration, or encouraging a child to watch or engage in any form
of sexual activity
Child Sexual Exploitation is a form of child sexual abuse. It occurs where an individual or group
take advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, manipulate or deceive a child or young
person into sexual activity in exchange for something the victims needs or wants, and or the
financial advantage or increased status of the perpetrator or facilitator.1
Sexual Violence and abuse can also take place in the community or be carried out online by
people who are either acquaintances or stranger to the victim as well as take place within family
and partner relationships.

Background
Nationally and locally, there has been an increased focus on sexual violence and abuse in recent
years.
There are many sources of information, data and research that has helped inform this strategy. A
full list of sources can be found in Appendix B.
In 2015 Essex Police recorded 3034 Sexual Offences and 3768 in 2018 (24% increase).
Specifically for offences of rape In October 2015, Essex Police recorded 80 cases. In October
2018, this rose to 143 offences recorded. A significant increase of 79% increase. The Police, Fire
and Crime Commissioner for Essex has a responsibility to commission services to support victims
of crime, which includes victims of sexual violence and abuse. In Essex the volume of individuals
seeking support has grown significantly in recent years; between Q1 2016-17 and Q4 2018-19
demand for support services has increased 65%.2

Services Requested
4000
3500
2783

3000
2500

2195

2961

3180 3225 3158 3224

3479 3388

3622

2414 2330

2000
1500
1000
500

Q1

20
16
-1
7
Q2
20
16
-1
7
Q3
20
16
-1
7
Q4
20
16
-1
7
Q1
20
17
-1
8
Q2
20
17
-1
8
Q3
20
17
-1
8
Q4
20
17
-1
8
Q1
20
18
-1
9
Q2
20
18
-1
9
Q3
20
18
-1
9
Q4
20
18
-1
9

0

1. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/591903/CSE_Guidance_Core_
Document_13.02.2017.pdf

Page 46

2. Data provided from Synergy Essex, the Essex Rape Crisis Partnership

4

Jointly, NHS England and the Police Fire and Crime Commissioner for Essex commission the Essex
Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC) at Oakwood Place, Brentwood. SARCs are a safe place for
victims of sexual assault to be examined, interviewed, and be referred to further support services.
They support victims to understand their options and make an informed choice to decide how
they wish to proceed. SARC examinations have seen an increase in demand for their services by
32%.3
The annual Crime Survey of England and Wales (CSEW) estimates that 20% of women and 4% of
men have experienced some type of sexual assault since the age of 16. Essex has an estimated
population age 16+ of 1,200,174.4 This suggests that 240,034 female and 48,007 men in Essex
have experienced some type of sexual assault. The CSEW showed that around 83% of victims did
not report their experiences to the police.
Whilst Police have seen an increase in recorded sexual offences, this does not demonstrate
an increase in the prevalence of these offences. The 2017 CSEW5 recognised that the overall
prevalence of sexual assault experienced by adults ages 16-59 since April 2016 has not changed
significantly since the year ending March 2005, although reporting rates over this time has
increased as more people seek help and support and disclose abuse to police. In Nov 2014,
HMIC published a report6 on crime data integrity that recognised failings to record crimes of
sexual violence, noting that ‘the problem is greatest for victims of violence against the person and
sexual offences, where the under-recording rates are 33 percent and 26 percent respectively.
In a report by the Home Office,7 it was estimated the average cost of the consequences of those
who were a victim of rape is £93,590. This is estimated to be a conservative calculation and
underestimates the true extent of the cost.
In May 2015, data was analysed to identify those that accessed adult sites. It identified that one
in five under 18s in the UK had visited an adult site and one in ten UK visitors to adult sites were
children8. 13% of these children were aged 6-14.9 There has been a significant increase in online
abuse with the National Crime Agency recently reporting that there has been a 700% since 2012
of child online sexual abuse images.10 ‘Their report found an increase in hidden or encrypted
online opportunities for higher risk offending. End-to-end encryption and increased anonymity on
the internet are progressively becoming standard. Offenders can use the dark web to groom and
harm children on the mainstream internet.’
The NHS England Strategic Direction recognises that support for victims through the forensic and
judicial process is available but there may be little emotional and physical support longer-term
and over the individual’s lifetime11. It can be exceedingly difficult for survivors to navigate the
system to receive the right help at the right time.12 It also references a further lack of coordinated
working between commissioned services recognising the value and experience of specialist
services with existing statutory service offering. Specialist support services provide a deeper
3. SARC quarterly performance reporting Aug 2017; 292 victims Aug 2018; 387
4. www.essexinisight.org.uk 2018 population projections by age groups
5. https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/sexualoffencesinenglandandwales/
yearendingmarch2017#how-prevalent-are-sexual-assaults
6. https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/crime-recording-making-the-victim-count.pdf
7. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772180/horr107.pdf
8. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/522166/VAWG_Strategy_FINAL_
PUBLICATION_MASTER_vRB.PDF Comscore 2015
9. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/541366/AV_ConsultationDCMS_20160216_
Final__4_.pdf
10. http://www.nationalcrimeagency.gov.uk/news/1458-nca-and-police-arrest-130-suspects-for-child-sexual-abuse-and-exploitation-in-just-one-week
11. https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/strategic-direction-sexual-assault-and-abuse-services.pdf
12. https://rapecrisis.org.uk/media/1920/report-on-funding-and-commissioning-of-sv-and-abuse-services-2018.pdf

Page 47
5

understanding of the impact of sexual violence and abuse but also bring local knowledge of the
needs of victims in Essex. In order to ensure victims receive the right support at the right time
commissioned support services need to be led by understanding, listening to, and responding to
the needs of victims.
Sexual violence happens both within coercive, intimate relationships and within wider family
relationships. Data from Essex Rape Crisis Partnership shows that 23% of victims aged 16 and
over had experienced sexual violence perpetrated by an intimate partner. An additional 33% of
victims had experienced sexual violence and child sexual abuse within their family, perpetrated
by a family member (predominantly father, stepfather, grandfather or brother).
In Essex there is a successful Domestic Abuse Partnership that has established a collaborative
partnership response and pathways of support to those at risk of domestic abuse, for example
Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), support for victims and interventions for
perpetrators of domestic violence. As demonstrated from the data provided by Essex Rape
Crisis Partnership sexual violence is happening in domestic settings with intimate partners. It is
therefore important domestic violence and sexual violence partners are working together in order
to prevent harm and keep safe victims.
We want to ensure everyone has the same level of access to justice and support. We recognise
that BAME victims, LGBTQ+ victims and male victims may face additional barriers to reporting
sexual violence and child sexual abuse and to accessing support. Data from the CSEW suggests
that 16% of victims of sexual violence are male, and following a number of high profile cases
involving male victims and the IICSA Truth Project, more adult male victims are now reporting
sexual violence, in particular child sexual abuse, to the Police. 12% of victims currently
supported by the Essex Rape Crisis Partnership are male and the majority of these are adult
survivors of child sexual abuse.
The Home Office Ending Violence Against Women and Girls strategy recognises the need to
work with perpetrators stating that ‘we cannot simply arrest our way out of domestic and sexual
violence.’ ‘Through supporting interventions that lead to sustainable behaviour change in
perpetrators themselves, we will drive an overall reduction in prevalence of VAWG crimes and
reduce rates of re-offending.
Comparatively Essex is an outlier, according to a recent peer review on the decision to charge
those that have been investigated for rape crimes. Data published identified that in 2017/18 the
total Essex referrals to CPS was 178 with 38 (21%) the CPS took a decision to charge.13
The Crime Survey for England and Wales14 identified that most recent rape or assault by
penetration (including attempts), 38% of victims reported that the offender(s) were under the
influence of alcohol. The same proportion of victims (38%) said they were under the influence of
alcohol themselves. It is therefore important to work with drug and alcohol messaging to ensure
we raise awareness.

13. https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/our-work/article/rape-monitoring-group-digests/
14. https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/sexualoffencesinenglandandwales/
yearendingmarch2017

Page 48
6

Police referrals to CPS and decision to charge
150

140

120

104

90

100

74
60

60

57
38

36

30

16

24

0
Suffolk

Surrey

Sussex

Decision to charge

Thames
Valley

Essex

Decision not to charge

Governance
This strategy has been developed, the Essex Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership board. The board
is represented by a range of relevant partners recognising the importance of each organisation’s
role in supporting victims of Sexual Violence and Abuse and ensuring an effective partnership
response to Sexual Violence and Abuse. The Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership Board will utilise
the multi-agency framework and ensure it coordinates the approach to innovate and drive change
in order to deliver against the strategy. The board will ensure reporting links to the below boards
to share and promote a consistent approach across Essex:
•

Southend, Essex and Thurrock Health & Wellbeing Boards

•

Safer Essex

•

Essex Integrated Health and Justice Commissioning group

•

Children’s Safeguarding partnerships and relevant subgroups

•

Adult Safeguarding boards

•

Essex Criminal Justice Board

•

Essex Domestic Abuse Board

•

Essex Reducing Reoffending Board

•

Rape Scrutiny Panel

Page 49
7

The strategy will also support and direct local commissioning decisions and direction for sexual
violence and abuse. In Essex there are a number of projects/programmes and organisations
commissioned to support the sexual violence and abuse agenda in order to deliver each
organisational outcomes for example;
•

Public Health Outcomes Framework includes specific outcomes aligned to Sexual
Violence and Abuse

•

NHS Strategic Plan includes improving outcomes for Victims of Sexual Violence and Abuse

•

Essex Police commitment to improve responses to Sexual Violence and Abuse crimes

•

Essex Police Fire and Crime Commissioner ensures Victims are supported from the impact
of Sexual Violence and Abuse

It is therefore important that commissioner’s work together in order to ensure a joined-up approach
and have a shared outcome for Essex victims. Annexe A identifies commissioning responsibilities

Strategic Vision
Strategic
Vision

Our vision for sexual violence and abuse is for partners to work together to prevent
the volume and impact of sexual violence and abuse in Southend, Essex and
Thurrock

Mission
In order to achieve the vision working with partners we will create a culture and
Statement focus across Essex to ensure we prevent, understand, and respond to Sexual
Violence and Abuse through five key thematic areas.

Themes

Prevent

Support for
victims

Communication Perpetrators

Objective

Increase
education
to raise
awareness of
sexual violence
and abuse
including
consent.

Support is
available to
victims of
crime when
and where they
need it.

There is a clear
and consistent
messaging
across Essex on
our collective
response to
Sexual violence
and Abuse.

Identify areas/
individuals of
increased risk
to safeguard
and prevent
harm.

Professionals
and
practitioners
provide quality
support to
victims of
crime.

Page 50
8

Early
identification
of potential
perpetrators to
prevent harm.
Reduction of
Sexual Abuse
and Violence
reoffending.

Effective
criminal
justice
response
Victims feel
confident
and able
to support
criminal
proceedings.
Perpetrators
are brought
to justice.

Objectives
Support for victims
Sexual violence and abuse can have a profound impact on an individual but also impacts family
and friends. It is important that the immediate and long-term impact of this crime is recognised
and support is available to a victim but also to family members in order to make positive steps
towards recovery. Appropriate support needs to be easily accessible and available to reduce the
impact of the abuse to lessen the effect on the victim, their associated life chances and overall
wellbeing.
It is important that professionals provide environments where victims feel that can disclose any
incident of sexual violence and abuse. Professionals need to be considerate of the information
provided and with victim’s consent be aware of how they can refer or signpost to appropriate
support. Professionals also need to recognise the importance of the information being disclosed
as it could be of evidential importance to a criminal justice process.
Following the disclosure of abuse by a victim of crime, it is important that clear pathways are
known and available to ensure victims receive appropriate, timely, specialist support without
barriers and without causing re-traumatisation. It is important that across the county there are
accessible and consistent pathways for victims and professionals. Where multiple practitioners
are supporting a victim, practitioners should consider a collaborative approach to meet the
complex needs of victims and their families. Taking a collaborative approach improves a victims
journey and reduces the risk of agency priorities overlapping and negatively impacting the victim
causing further harm or delaying recovery.
Services need to be available and accessible to all and partner organisations need to be
gathering robust, consistent data to enable effective analysis of trends to ensure victims across
Essex are effectively accessing justice and support. Partners should engage third sector and
community groups to respond to identified need.

Prevent
Prevention is vital to stop the growth of illicit sexual behaviour and to avoid individuals of Essex
becoming victims of sexually based crimes. Educating children, young people and adults on sex
and healthy relationships is vital to ensure that they understand what constitutes consent, and
can recognise factors that represent unhealthy relationships. Education is important to challenge
myths and stereotypes, and provide facts to ensure sexual violence and abuse is understood.
The Department of Education notes the complex world that young people are now part of, and has
recognised the need to develop statutory guidance and regulations to ensure relationship and sex
education is compulsorily taught in schools. This will be enforced from 2020 with the ambition that
schools start including this within curriculum from Sept 2019. There is an ambition to ensure that
where possible there is a consistency of message being delivered within the curriculum.
Research suggests there are cohorts within Essex that are at increased risk of becoming
vulnerable. These include, but are not limited to; young people, young adults (university/college
students), disability groups and those associated with the sex industry
Education on the impact of sexual abuse and how to recognise sexually abusive behaviour is
not isolated to classrooms. Together Essex Partners will work together to target awareness in the

Page 51
9

places/areas of vulnerabilities but also need to proactively disrupt behaviour that is high risk.

Communication
It is important that across Essex Southend and Thurrock there is greater awareness of sexual
violence and abuse including:
•

What is sexual violence and abuse

•

How to report it

•

What support is available (whether reported to the Police or not)

•

How to access support

It is important that awareness activities are considered and targeted to ensure harder to reach
communities and those who are most at risk are engaged. Messaging publicly and through
organisations across Southend Essex and Thurrock need to be consistent to prevent confusion
and duplication. Organisations should utilise the power of communities to improve engagement
in order to identify and provide support to areas of need.
This strategy is inclusive of all aspects of sexual violence and abuse. Across Essex there are a
number of strategic boards focusing on individual strands of sexual abuse. Cohesive working
across all sexual violence areas needs to be enabled to ensure there are clear promoted pathways
and consistent messaging.
Communication should not focus just on prevention and awareness raising. It needs to build
confidence in the system and encourage victims to seek the support they need. We believe the
recent increase in reporting and victims accessing support against a backdrop of little change
of prevalence of crime shows an increase in confidence in the system. We want to continue to
encourage victims to feel confident to report and confidence in the support available.

Perpetrators
Whilst reoffending rates for sexual violence and abuse are lower than other offences16 it is still
important to ensure that there are effective perpetrator programmes in place to change behaviour
in order to prevent and stop reoffending.
There also needs to be a focus on recognising the risks and early signs of those yet to offend.
Partners need to work collaboratively recognising and intervening early to support potential
perpetrators to reduce the risk of sexual abuse taking place. This can include but not limited to
•

Raising awareness of consent and the impact drugs and alcohol may have on decision
making especially in the night time economy

•

Supporting vulnerable groups to understand consent and healthy relationship

•

Behaviour change programmes for those concerned about their thoughts or behaviour
towards young people

Collaboration is also key for partners to identify early those that pose as a risk and ensure
appropriate response are available, examples of this can include;
•

Ensuring and promoting good safeguarding processes including robust vetting
procedures where working with vulnerable people

16. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832662/proven_
reoffending_bulletin_July_to_Sept_17.pdf

Page 52
10

•

Partners utilising data and working together to respond to identified areas of vulnerability
e.g. online grooming (specifically group messaging sites), shopping centres, bars/
clubs etc. that might be high-risk areas of concern. Partners should ensure appropriate
operational responses to prevent abuse from happening in high risk areas.

•

Increased understanding amongst partners of the wider impact of very low reporting
and conviction rates, which mean that the vast majority of sexual offenders are not
prosecuted. This has wide reaching effects in family courts, social care, schools and
related agencies and it is crucial that this context is recognised and understood and
that allegations of sexual violence and child sexual abuse, even if they do not result in a
conviction, are carefully considered in child protection cases.

Effective criminal justice response
Victims should be at the heart of the criminal justice system. It is important that the voice of the
victim is heard within every organisation. Sexual violence and abuse is a complex crime and can
have numerous complex impacts. It is therefore important that this is recognised and reflected
throughout the criminal justice process. Not only does this ensure that criminal justice agencies
have a better understanding of sexual violence and abuse, it also ensures that victims are given
and empowered to make an informed choice throughout the process.
The primary aim of the criminal justice process is to bring perpetrators to justice. CPS and Essex
Police need to work together to understand the referrals to CPS and the decision making process
to charge to ensure perpetrators are being brought to justice. Dame Vera Baird during her role as
APCC victim lead commented ‘It’s a cause of worry that the number of sex offenders referred by
police for prosecutions has dropped and the numbers prosecuted has fallen even more. This is
all in the face of thousands more serious sexual complaints. This mismatch is capable of robbing
any victim of the confidence to report a sexual assault.’
Sexual Assault Referral Centres (SARCs) are dedicated specialist facilities that provide forensic
medical examination, that are carried out by experienced and qualified health practitioners and
are crucial for capturing best evidence. As part of the victims pathway, SARCs also provide an
access point into further support services.
Victims need to feel supported to make an informed choice to report the crime to Police. Once
reported, a victim may wish to not proceed with criminal procedures and decide not to continue
to engage with Police. Essex Police should support adult victims who have capacity and respect
their wishes however if there is a risk to the public or a risk of the crime, or the victim is a child,
the Police may decide to continue to investigate and look to support a prosecution without the
support or engagement of the victim.
Each criminal justice agency has a statutory responsibility under the Victim Code of Practice
(VCOP) to provide entitlements to ensure victims are appropriately supported through the
criminal justice process.

Page 53
11

Outcomes framework
Prevent
Increase education to raise awareness of sexual violence and abuse
•

Essex has a clear and consistent approach to education awareness activity including
Essex school relationship and sex education messaging

•

Individuals in Essex particularly children, young adults and vulnerable adults have a
clear understanding on consent and consequences

•

Individuals in Essex particularly children and young people and vulnerable adults are
aware how to remain safe online

Identify areas/individuals of increased risk to safeguard and prevent harm
•

Those most vulnerable have the skills and awareness to recognise and respond to risk

•

Organisations work together effectively to prevent deter and disrupt those who pose a
risk to vulnerable people in Essex

Effective Criminal Justice System
Victims feel supported and encouraged to support criminal proceedings
•

Victims’ voices are heard through the criminal justice process

•

Victims feel that they are informed, updated and supported through the criminal justice
process

•

Victims entitlements are consistently provided by criminal justice agencies

Perpetrators are brought to justice
•

There is an increase to the number and rates of perpetrators that are charged and
prosecuted

Support for victims
Support is available to victims of crime when they need it
•

Victims have access to appropriate support to meet their needs

•

Support pathways are clear, consistent and accessible

•

Partners will work collaboratively to deliver a coordinated and aligned system of support

Professionals and practitioners will provide quality support to victims of crime
•

Professionals and practitioners have the right skills, understanding to support victims
when they choose to disclose

•

Professionals understand the immediate and long term impact of sexual violence and
abuse on victims and their families

•

Victims are safeguarded from future harm

•

Partners will respond to changing and emerging needs in order to support victims

Page 54
12

Communication
There is a clear and consistent messaging across Essex on sexual violence and abuse
•

Essex residents and professionals have a clear understanding of sexual violence and
abuse across Essex

•

Communication activity is considered and targeted to areas of need

•

For all strands of sexual violence and abuse there is a consistent, clear and joined up
message

•

Pathways of support are clearly promoted

Perpetrators
Early identification of potential perpetrators to prevent harm
•

Partners work in collaboration to identify and work with potential perpetrators including
children exhibiting harmful sexual behaviour

•

Data will be used effectively to identify emerging threats in order to prevent harm

Reduction of sexual violence and abuse reoffending
•

Reduction of reoffending and prevention of offending due to sustainable behaviour
change programme

•

Clear opportunities of rehabilitation for perpetrators

Page 55
13

Appendix A: Commissioning responsibilities17
Sexual Health
Prevention
and Treatment
Services

Disclosure /
Criminal Justice

Immediate
Support

Long term
Support

NHS England

NHS England

PCCs

PCCs

• Contraception

• Sexual Assault Referral
Centres responsible for
• Promotion of opportunistic
forensic medical examine
testing and treatment for
STI
• HIV treatment and care
(including drug costs for
• Cervical Screening
HIV PEPSE)
• HIV treatment and care

• STI treatment

•Specialist Foetal medicine
services

• Sexual Health Elements of
prison and immigration
removal centre

CCG
• Abortion Services
• Sterilisation
• Gynaecology
• Sexual Health service for
children and young people
• Ambulance

Local Authorities
• Specialist sexual health
services
• Comprehensive sexual
health services

• Specific commissioning
• Specific commissioning
responsibilities for victims
responsibilities for victims
including victims of sexual
including victims of sexual
assault and abuse to
assault and abuse to
cope and recover from the
cope and recover from
impact of the crime e.g.
the impact of the crime
ISVA
e.g. ISVA and Community
Services

NHS England

• Support and follow up
services in SARCS (with
PCCS)

CCGs
• Ambulance/blue light
services

Local Authorities

Police and Crime
Commissioners

• Crisis/social workers for
children young people
and vulnerable adults

• Specific commissioning
responsibilities for victims,
including victims of sexual
assault and abuse
• ISVA

Local Authorities

Note other health
services maybe
engaged during
immediate support

NHS England
• Child and adolescent
mental health services
Tier 4

CCGs
• Mental Health and IAPT,
services for depression
and PTSD that understand
the specific needs of
victims and survivors of
sexual assault and abuse,
including the third sector
• Non-sexual health
elements of psychosexual
health services
• Secondary Care service

• ISVA

• STI testing
• STI treatment

All have responsibility to commission Specialist Voluntary Sector
Services to enhance provisions for Victims

17. Commissioning Responsibility sources include NHS Strategic direction for sexual assault and
abuse services and Service specification No. 30 Sexual Assault Referral Centres

Page 56
14

Appendix B
This strategy acknowledges, and has been informed by the following publications:
•

Essex Victim Needs Assessment 2017

•

NHS England Strategic Direction for sexual assault and abuse services

•

Home Office VAWG strategy

•

Southend, Essex & Thurrock Children Sexual Exploitation Strategy

•

Essex Police Crime Prevention Strategy

•

Essex joint commissioning strategy for domestic abuse

•

March 2018 Teacher Voice Omnibus Survey

•

December 2016 Violence Against Women and Girls National Statement of Expectations

•

December 2016 Violence Against Women and Girls Services Supporting Local Commissioning

•

Southend, Essex and Thurrock (SET) Child Protection Procedures

•

Thurrock Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

•

Office for National Statistics Sexual offences in England and Wales: year ending March 2017

•

Rape Monitoring Group digests

•

Essex Victims Code of Practice

•

Essex Insight 2018 population projections

•

HMIC Crime recording making the victim count Nov 2014

•

Home Office The economic and social costs of domestic abuse Jan 2019

•

Home Office Child Safety Online: Age Verification for Pornography Feb 2016

•

All-Party Parliamentary Group on Sexual Violence report into the Funding and
Commissioning of Sexual Violence and Abuse Services 2018

Page 57
15

This page is intentionally left blank

FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM
Area of Assessment:

Essex sexual abuse strategy

Date of Assessment:

18/08/2020

Owner:

Greg Myddelton

New or existing policy/function:

New strategy

Stage 1 – Detail of policy, function, project or proposal
Briefly describe the aims, objectives and outcomes of the policy/function
The Essex sexual abuse strategy aims to prevent the volume and impact of sexual
violence and abuse in Southend, Essex and Thurrock. The strategy is split into 5 key
aims; Prevent abuse, provide good quality support for victims, provide a consistent
approach to communication, tackle perpetrators of abuse, and ensure an effective
criminal justice process.
A partnership strategy promotes a more consistent approach across the partnership,
rather than individual agencies pursuing different strategic objectives. This has been an
effective approach in our collective response to domestic abuse which we aim to replicate
in response to sexual abuse.
The strategy emerged from the Essex Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership which is the
strategic body concerned with improving the collective approach to sexual abuse across
the County. The partnership is made up of representatives from police, local authority,
health, Probation, Crown Prosecution Service, and support providers.
What policies/procedures/functions are relevant to this area?
This strategy relates to sexual violence and abuse in all its forms. As such it relates to
crime, safeguarding, and abuse, as well as preventative areas such as education.
The strategy is not intended to be a guide to inform operational practice, but it should be
used by organisations to understand their responsibilities and commitments in relation to
all forms of sexual abuse and what they can do to prevent abuse, support victims or bring
perpetrators to justice.
This strategy will be supported by an operational plan that will articulate the required
actions to achieve the stated ambitions. Each agency will be asked to take responsibility
for delivering the identified actions.

Page 59

Stage 2 – Consider the Evidence
Which individuals and organisations are likely to be affected by the policy/function and in
what way?
This is an all-age, all-gender strategy. The scope extends to all forms of sexual abuse
including, but not limited to; rape, child sexual abuse and exploitation, sex trafficking,
online sexual abuse and other sexual offences.
Anyone can be a victim of sexual abuse so this strategy recognises the harm
experienced by children, adults, and adult victims/survivors of child abuse.
As the strategy notes, research suggests there are cohorts of individuals that may be at
increased risk of becoming victims of abuse. These include, but are not limited to; young
people, young adults (university/college students), disability groups and those associated
with the sex industry.
As a partnership strategy it is intended that a range of stakeholder organisations sign up
to this strategy including Essex Police, Southend, Essex and Thurrock Councils, Essex
CCGs, NHS England (East), and Probation.
What relevant quantitative data has been considered?
The strategy draws on quantitative data produced by a number of sources including the
ONS Crime Survey of England and Wales, Essex Police data, performance data from our
local rape crisis service providers, Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire &
Rescue Services (HMICFS), Home Office, and NHS.
Amongst other things, the data shows that demand for support from victims of sexual
abuse is on an upward trajectory, despite the fact that these offences remain amongst the
most under-reported, with an estimated 80% of crimes not resulting in a report to police.
An estimated 20% of women and 4% of men have been a victim of sexual abuse which
equates to almost 300,000 people across Essex.
What relevant qualitative data has been considered?
The SYNERGY rape crisis partnership delivers specialist support for victims of sexual
abuse in Essex. SYNERGY provides case study examples within their quarterly
monitoring reports and have arranged for direct inputs from victims and survivors at
events including a PFCC-led sexual abuse roundtable, a visit from the Victims’
Commissioner in November 2018, and a Violence Against Women and Girls event in
Thurrock in early 2020. In addition, Essex Police has used direct experience for training
events and to improve local practice. When the PFCC recommissioned its sexual abuse
support service in 2020 it worked with Healthwatch Essex to convene a panel of victims
of sexual abuse to provide their input into the evaluation process for the procurement
exercise to ensure the process took account of the experience and voice of victims.
These case studies and direct experience have been vital in improving understanding of
the nature, impact and prevalence of abuse locally and have prompted action to develop
this strategy amongst members of the Essex SASP.

Page 60

Has the function/policy been subject to consultation? If no, why not? If yes, which
individuals and organisations were consulted and what form did consultation take?
This strategy was developed with the support and extensive input from our specialist
sexual abuse support providers; Synergy rape crisis partnership. As support providers,
Synergy has a wealth of experience of hearing directly from victims, survivors and their
families about the issues raised in this strategy.
We have also presented to, and consulted with, a range of stakeholders and forums
including Safer Essex, the Essex Health Executive Forum, the Essex Criminal Justice
Board, Essex Integrated Commissioning Group, the Essex, Southend and Thurrock
Safeguarding Boards, and the Essex Partnership Board.
Were any gaps in information identified? If so, what consideration has been given to
commissioning work where required?
Suggestions were made at various stages of the consultation process of this strategy.
Examples include the addition of more information regarding sexual abuse in domestic
settings and BAME victims. These suggestions were integrated into the final iteration of
the strategy.
Stage 3- Assessment of impact

Potential for differential/ adverse impact based on
analysis of data and information

Yes/No
Race

Y

Disability
(Including
physical, sensory
and mental health)

Y

Gender
reassignment

Y

Age

Y

Religion or belief

Y

Sexual orientation

Y

Pregnancy and
maternity
Marriage and civil
partnership
Sex

Comments and evidence where appropriate
It has been found that some individuals or
groups are more vulnerable to sexual abuse,
including those with disabilities, younger
people, and individuals working in the sex
industry. It should also be noted that many
more women than men are victims of sexual
abuse. We also know that many individuals
do not report abuse and therefore do not
access support that is available to them.
There may be a disparity in reporting due to
barriers associated with certain characteristics
such as gender, religion or race.
Support services endeavour to be delivered in
an accessible and non-judgmental way that
any victims regardless of their characteristics,
can access and receive support. Services
monitor demographic data of those engaging
and undertake activities and actions to reach
out to all groups and encourage engagement
with those groups that may be underrepresented.

Y

Page 61

Stage 4 – Deciding the way forward
If potential for differential/adverse impact remains explain why implementation is
justifiable in order to meet the wider policy aims.
This strategy establishes the collective ambition to reduce the harm associated with
sexual abuse in Essex and will set out the partnership’s approach to achieving that goal.
It is acknowledged that some groups are more vulnerable to harm but in combatting
abuse we expect to reduce harm across all characteristics. We also aim to improve our
understanding of the scale of the issue in Essex and enhance the accessibility of
reporting mechanisms and support services for all victims of sexual crimes.
Summarise any changes made to the policy to reduce or remove the potential for
differential/adverse impact
No changes
If the function/policy is to be abandoned, please explain why and how the implications will
be managed
This is a new strategy. It will not replace individual organisational strategies or
operational work plans but is intended to align with those strategies already in place. As
such an abandonment of this strategy would risk reducing the consistency and
collaboration between different organisational approaches to a complex issue that is best
tackled collectively.
Describe how the function/policy promotes good relations
By developing a partnership strategy we are strengthening the approach to what is a
complex, multi-faceted issue that cannot be addressed by a single agency.
Stage 5 - Monitoring Arrangements
Describe how the function/policy is (or will be) monitored
We will monitor the strategy through the Essex Sexual Abuse Partnership. The strategy
is accompanied by an outcomes framework which will be reported via the SASP.
Demographic information associated with reports of sexual abuse and those accessing
support services will continue to be monitored and will inform the evaluation process of
this strategy.
Have the assessment outcomes been fed back to those consulted?
n/a
Impact assessed by:

Greg Myddelton

Approved by (owner):

Date:
Date:

Page 62

19/08/2020

